## **City of Fort Lauderdale**

City Hall 100 North Andrews Avenue Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301 www.fortlauderdale.gov



## **Meeting Minutes - APPROVED**

Tuesday, October 18, 2016 6:00 PM

**City Commission Chambers** 

## **City Commission Regular Meeting**

FORT LAUDERDALE CITY COMMISSION

JOHN P. "JACK" SEILER Mayor - Commissioner
DEAN J. TRANTALIS Vice Mayor - Commissioner - District II
BRUCE G. ROBERTS Commissioner - District II
ROBERT L. McKINZIE Commissioner - District III
ROMNEY ROGERS Commissioner - District IV

LEE R. FELDMAN, City Manager JOHN HERBST, City Auditor JEFFREY A. MODARELLI, City Clerk CYNTHIA A. EVERETT, City Attorney

#### INVOCATION

Reverend Father Curtis Kiddy, St. Jerome Catholic Church

#### PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Michelle and Division Fire Chief Timothy Heiser

#### **ROLL CALL**

Present: 5 - Commissioner Robert L. McKinzie, Commissioner Romney Rogers, Commissioner Bruce G. Roberts, Vice Mayor Dean J. Trantalis and Mayor John P. "Jack" Seiler

#### QUORUM ESTABLISHED

Also Present: City Manager Lee R. Feldman, City Clerk Jeffrey A. Modarelli, City Attorney Cynthia A. Everett, City Auditor John Herbst, and Sergeant At Arms Jaime Costas

#### CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Seiler called the meeting to order at 6:08 p.m.

#### **WALK-ON ITEMS**

16-1312 Walk-On Motion - City Commission Request for Review - Tattoo Blues Sign - Case Number R16052

Mayor Seiler read this Walk-On Motion by title only.

Vice Mayor Trantalis made a motion to add this Walk-On item to the Agenda and was seconded by Commissioner Roberts.

#### APPROVED Motion to add item to agenda

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

# WALK ON - Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to (i) Execute and File a Temporary General Use Permit with the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) for Placement and Operation of a Temporary ADA Accessible Water Taxi/Shuttle Landing for the Fort Lauderdale Boat Show shuttle at the Laura Ward Park, (ii) Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Assignment and Assumption Agreement with Yachting Promotions, Inc. (YPI)

Mayor Seiler read this Walk-On Resolution by title only.

Vice Mayor Trantalis made a motion to add this resolution to tonight's Consent Agenda which was seconded by Commissioner Rogers.

APPROVED Motion to add item to consent agenda

#### AGENDA ANNOUNCEMENTS

Mayor Seiler announced the following updates and revisions to the Agenda items:

Updates and revisions to the Consent Agenda items:

CM-6 - Revised memo and task order to reflect "FEC"

CM-7 - Revised Exhibit 1

Pur-8 - Revised background section of the Memo

#### **CONSENT AGENDA**

Mayor Seiler announced the procedure for the consent agenda items. Mayor Seiler announced the following items had been pulled from to tonight's Consent Agenda to be heard and considered separately: CM-1, CM-8, PUR-3, and PUR-4.

#### **PRESENTATIONS**

Commissioner Roberts noted that the recipient of PRES-1 had not yet arrived and this presentation will be given later in the meeting.

## PRES- <u>16-1283</u>

Proclamation declaring October, 2016 as Florida Native Plant Month in the City of Fort Lauderdale

Commissioner Rogers presented a Proclamation declaring October, 2016, as Florida Native Plant Month in the City of Fort Lauderdale. Commissioner Rogers requested Richard Brumscum to join him at the podium. Commissioner Rogers presented Mr. Brumscum with the City's Proclamation declaring October, 2016, as Florida Native Plant Month in the City of Fort Lauderdale and read the Proclamation in its entirety.

Mr. Brumscum thanked Mayor Seiler and the City Commission for this recognition and the City's Proclamation. He requested the citizens of the City plant a native plant in memory of Mr. Gene Dempsey, former City Forester - Office of Sustainability, Department of Public Works, who gave the City many trees and native plants. Mr. Brumscum elaborated on the need and importance of planting native plants and trees for the

well-being of City's natural habitat and environment.

#### **PRESENTED**

# PRES- <u>16-1280</u>

Proclamation declaring October 18, 2016 as Fort Lauderdale Fire Rescue Heroes Drive Pink with AutoNation Day in the City of Fort Lauderdale

Vice Mayor Trantalis presented the Proclamation declaring October 18, 2016, as Fort Lauderdale Fire Rescue Heroes Drive Pink with AutoNation Day in the City of Fort Lauderdale.

Vice Mayor Trantalis requested Fire Chief Robert Hoecherl, Division Fire Chief Timothy Heiser, Michelle Heiser, and Paula Levinson, representing AutoNation, to join him at the podium. Vice Mayor Trantalis read the City's Proclamation in its entirety and presented it to Fire Chief Robert Hoecherl, Division Fire Chief Timothy Heiser, Michelle Heiser, and Paula Levinson. Ms. Levinson and Division Chief Heiser each thanked the City for its support, recognition and the Proclamation.

Mayor Seiler thanked the City's Fire Department noting its outstanding ranking in the nation. He also thanked AutoNation for their great corporate citizenship and support for building community, for making the City of Fort Lauderdale its home, and their consistent efforts in giving back to the community.

#### **PRESENTED**

#### Approval of MINUTES and Agenda

#### 16-1287

Minutes for September 20, 2016, City Commission Conference Meeting and September 20, 2016, City Commission Regular Meeting

Vice Mayor Trantalis made a motion to approve tonight's Agenda and the Minutes for the City Commission Conference Meeting of September 20, 2016, and the City Commission Regular Meeting of September 20, 2016.

#### **APPROVED**

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

PRES- <u>16-1279</u>

Police Officer of the Month for October, 2016

Police Major Rick Maglione requested Police Detectives Matthew Guerra and Vincent Falzone join him at the podium. Major Maglione presented both Detective Matthew Guerra and Detective Vincent Falzone with the Police Officer of the Month Award for October, 20, 2016. Major Maglione described the incident involving Detective Matthew Guerra and Detective Vincent Falzone which led to the apprehension of four dangerous suspects who eventually confessed to a murder and robbery in Altamonte Springs, Florida. Major Maglione commended Police Detectives Matthew Guerra and Vincent Falzone for a job well done.

#### **PRESENTED**

Mayor Seiler announced to the public a letter from U.S. Senator Bill Nelson notifying Mayor Seiler that the City received a U.S. Department of Justice Grant for Police Body Camera implementation in the amount of \$600,000. Additionally, Mayor Seiler stated the City has also received a \$1,000,000 grant to hire eight additional police officers. He stated these funds will give the City's Police Department the resources it needs.

#### CONSENT MOTION

#### CM-1 16-1266

Motion Authorizing Settlement of Employment Practices Liability Claim in the Matter of Michael Florenco v. City of Fort Lauderdale, Case No. CACE 15-020353 (25), Appeal Case No. 4D16-1892, and Pending Arbitration Case in the amount of \$50,000

Mayor Seiler recognized Charles King, 105 N. Victoria Park Road, who addressed the Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns, and questions regarding this item.

Commissioner Roberts moved to approve this item which was seconded by Commissioner McKinzie.

#### APPROVED

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

#### Approval of the Consent Agenda

#### Approve the Consent Agenda

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

CM-2 16-1157 Motion to Approve an Agreement with Riverwalk Fort Lauderdale, Inc.

16-1200

16-0974

CM-5

CM-6

#### for 2017 Events

#### **APPROVED**

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

CM-3 16-1193 Motion to Approve an Agreement with Yachting Promotions, Inc. and the Marine Industries Association of South Florida, Inc. for the 2016 Fort Lauderdale International Boat Show

#### **APPROVED**

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

CM-4 16-1198 Motion to Approve Event Agreements: Veteran's Day 5K Buddy Run/Walk, Icarus Florida Ultrafest, 2016 Fort Lauderdale Fest and Meet Me In Fort Lauderdale

#### **APPROVED**

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

Motion to Approve Event Agreements and Related Road Closings: Trunk or Treat, Novemberfest 2016, The Leukemia & Lymphoma Society's Light the Night Walk and Race with the Broward County Delta's

#### **APPROVED**

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

Motion to Approve Professional Engineering Services for a Condition Survey Inspection of Riverwalk North Between the CSX Train Track and Andrews Avenue - Calvin, Giordano & Associates, Inc. - Not to Exceed \$9,000 Task Order

#### **APPROVED**

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

CM-7 16-0823 Motion Approving Co-Sponsorship of the Shen Yun Performing Arts

#### **APPROVED**

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

CM-8 16-1234 Motion Authorizing a Revocable License with PRH Fairwinds, LLC,

for the Temporary Closure of NE 23rd Street Right of Way in Association with the Construction of the Auberge, formerly, Fairwinds on the Ocean Development

Mayor Seiler noted this item had been pulled by Steve Gannon, President of the Lauderdale Beach Homeowners Association, who was in support of this item. As such, Mayor Seiler stated that no discussions on this item were necessary.

Vice Mayor Trantalis moved to approve this item which was seconded by Commissioner Roberts.

#### **APPROVED**

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

#### **PURCHASING AGENDA**

PUR-1 16-1143 Motion to Approve Contract for the Construction of Mills Pond Park Athletic Fields - CSR Heavy Construction, Inc.- \$3,716,524

#### **APPROVED**

APPROVED

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

PUR-2 16-1149 Motion to Approve Contract for Parking Lot Clean-Up Services at Various City Locations - Ceiling to Floor Cleaning Inc. - \$110,450

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

PUR-3 16-1160 Motion to Approve Contract for City Hall 1st Floor Security
Enhancements Project - Sun Eagle General Contractors Corporation
- \$133,639

Mayor Seiler recognized Charles King, 105 N. Victoria Park Road, who addressed the City Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns, and questions regarding this item.

Vice Mayor Trantalis commented on the importance protecting all attendees at City Commission Meetings noting this item ensures the safety of all City Commission Meeting participants.

Commissioner Roberts moved to approve this item which was seconded by Commissioner McKinzie.

#### APPROVED

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

#### PUR-4 <u>16-1161</u>

Motion to Approve Purchase of Street Light Fixtures - Multiple Vendors - \$314.239

Commissioner Rogers asked whether this item's purchase of replacement of light bulbs were with LED light bulbs and if the City would receive any type of energy credit. City Manager stated the City would not get a specific credit as the City pays on an energy consumption basis. He also stated that when the City changes its lighting to LED light bulbs, it will save on energy consumption. City Manager Feldman also stated that these lights are not from Florida Power and Light (FPL).

Commissioner Rogers moved to approve this item which was seconded by Commissioner McKinzie.

#### **APPROVED**

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

# PRES- <u>16-1285</u>

Proclamation declaring October, 2016 as Domestic Violence Awareness Month in the City of Fort Lauderdale

Commissioner Roberts requested Ron Osborn Williams, the representative from the Women in Distress organization, to join him at the podium for the presentation of this Proclamation declaring October, 2016, as Domestic Violence Awareness Month in the City of Fort Lauderdale.

Commissioner Roberts read the Proclamation in its entirety and presented it to Mr. Williams. Mr. Williams thanked Mayor Seiler, the City Commission, and the City of Fort Lauderdale on behalf of the Mayor Stacy Ritter, CEO of Women in Distress. Mr. Williams also thanked those who participate at Women in Distress for their ongoing support of those in Greater Fort Lauderdale who experience domestic violence.

#### **PRESENTED**

#### PUR-5 <u>16-1217</u>

Motion to Approve Contract for Fiveash Water Treatment Plant Hydrotreaters 3 and 4 Influent Pipe Modifications - RF Environmental Services, Inc. - \$399,096

#### **APPROVED**

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

#### PUR-6 16-1228

Motion to Approve Proprietary Purchase of Annual Software Maintenance Service - Cogsdale Corporation - \$226,016

#### **APPROVED**

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

#### PUR-7 16-1262

Motion to Approve Contract for Holiday Park Dog Park - Interstate Construction, LLC - \$106,235

#### **APPROVED**

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

#### PUR-8 16-1201

Motion to Approve Contract Amendment for Additional Expenditures for Elevator Maintenance and Repair Services - Xpert Elevator Services, Inc. - \$85,000

#### **APPROVED**

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

#### 16-1130

WALK ON - Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to (i) Execute and File a Temporary General Use Permit with the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) for Placement and Operation of a Temporary ADA Accessible Water Taxi/Shuttle Landing for the Fort Lauderdale Boat Show shuttle at the Laura Ward Park, (ii) Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Assignment and Assumption Agreement with Yachting Promotions, Inc. (YPI)

#### **ADOPTED**

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

#### **MOTIONS**

#### M-1 16-1219

Consideration of a Motion Regarding the Release of Request for Proposals (RFP) for Managed Services of a 911 Communication Center

City Manager Feldman requested direction from the City Commission regarding the City moving forward with the release of a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the its own 911 Emergency Communications Center System. Commissioner Roberts initiated the discussion on this topic focusing on the need for the proper levels of 911 emergency services for the citizens of the City. Commissioner Roberts noted that the current consolidated system with Broward County has not been adequate in

addressing emergency needs of the residents of the City.

Commissioner Roberts stated he would like an RFP to enable the City to make a better decision on this subject.

Mayor Seiler recognized Charles King, 105 N. Victoria Park Road, who addressed the Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns, and questions regarding this item and in opposition to Commissioner Roberts' recommendation due to costs.

Mayor Seiler recognized Steve Ganon, Lauderdale Beach Homeowners Association, who addressed the Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns and questions regarding this item. Mr. Ganon cited the long response times he has experienced with the current 911 Communications Center as well as other issues.

Mayor Seiler recognized Steve Coleman, 1729 NE 17th Avenue, who addressed the Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns, and questions regarding this item and also noted the current long response times he had experienced.

Vice Mayor Trantalis commented on City Manager Feldman's previous comments about the lack of adequate, trainable personnel even if the City instituted its own 911 Emergency Communications Center System and the associated costs. Vice Mayor Trantalis asked City Manager Feldman for his input. City Manager Feldman stated his concern remains with the staffing issues of the City's own 911 Emergency Communications Center System. Mayor Seiler commented that unless he can have a guarantee that the City's own 911 Emergency Communications Center System would be adequately staffed at the necessary levels of service, he is not comfortable moving forward on an expenditure of this magnitude. The Commission continued discussions and debate on this issue including the costs and requirements of the proposed Request for Proposals (RFP), the improvements the current 911 system is working towards, and other needs of the City which are in need of funding.

Commissioner Roberts moved to approve this item and was seconded by Robert McKinzie.

#### **APPROVED**

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

Motion to Approve an Event Agreement with National Marine Suppliers, Inc. for National Marine Suppliers Annual Customer

M-2

#### Appreciation Party

Mayor Seiler stated there was no one present wishing to speak on this item.

The Commission discussed the closing time of this event noting it is the same as last year and was very successful.

Vice Mayor Trantalis moved to approve this item which was seconded by Commissioner Rogers.

#### **APPROVED**

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

M-3 <u>16-1094</u>

Motion to approve Designation of the City of Fort Lauderdale Voting Delegate and Alternate(s) for the National League of Cities - 2016 Congress of Cities and Annual Business Meeting

The Commission discussed the dates of this event and the designation of the City of Fort Lauderdale Voting Delegate and Alternate for the National League of Cities Congress of Cities. There was a consensus that Commissioner Roberts would be the City's delegate and alternate.

Commissioner Roberts made a motion to designate Commission Roberts as the City of Fort Lauderdale's delegate and the alternate to the National League of Cities Congress of Cities which was seconded by Vice Mayor Trantalis.

APPROVED Motion to designate Commissioner Bruce G. Roberts as the City of Fort Lauderdale Delegate

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

#### **NEIGHBOR PRESENTATIONS**

NP-1 <u>16-1268</u>

Christine Timmon - Constitution and Religious Terrorism and Financial Terrorism of Federal Entitlement Programs

Mayor Seiler recognized Christine Timmon, 820 NW 1st Avenue, #7, who addressed the Commission on her Neighbor Presentation entitled Constitution and Religious Terrorism and Financial Terrorism of Federal Entitlement Programs.

RECEIVED

NP-2 16-1269

Art Seitz - Fort Lauderdale 2009 - 2016 - Fort Lauderdale Beach Concerns

Mayor Seiler recognized Art Seitz, 105 N. Ocean Blvd., who addressed the Commission with his presentation entitled Fort Lauderdale 2009 - 2016 - Fort Lauderdale Beach Concerns. Mr. Seitz's presentation focused on the use of the *Penny at Work* initiative should it be passed on the November 2016 ballot and recommendations as to how these funds should be spent in the City's beach area.

Mr. Seitz's noted past projects in the City such as the South Side School and the City's Aquatic Complex which have been costly. Mr. Seitz recommended how this funding could be spent. Mr. Seitz also gave his suggestions for improved development opportunities in the Las Olas Marina parking lot area.

#### RECEIVED

#### NP-3 <u>16-1270</u>

Charles King - Officer(s) and Blue Courtesy

Mayor Seiler recognized Charles King, 105 N. Victoria Park Road, who addressed the Commission with his Neighbor Presentation entitled Officer(s) and Blue Courtesy. Mr. King's specific comments related to Fort Lauderdale Police Officer David Knapp and the Blue Courtesy shown to him by the Fort Lauderdale Police Department. Mr. King read a newspaper article that appeared in the *Sun Sentinel* in late August, 2016. Mr. King also read a subsequent newspaper article on the incident involving Officer Knapp.

#### RECEIVED

#### RESOLUTIONS

#### R-1 16-1256

Appointment of Board and Committee Members

Discussions ensued on upcoming appointments to the City's Advisory Boards including the following appointments that will be voted on by resolution at the November 1, 2016, City Commission Meeting:

Robert Wolfe - Economic Development Advisory Board Brandon Stewart - Affordable Housing Advisory Committee

Vice Mayor Trantalis introduced this resolution appointing City Advisory Board and Committee members as noted below. City Clerk Modarelli read resolution by title only:

#### AFFORDABLE HOUSING ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Wilson Atkinson is appointed to the Affordable Housing Advisory Committee (category: One who actively represents employers in the City of Fort Lauderdale) to complete an unexpired term ending 12/1/2017 or until his successor has been appointed.

#### AVIATION ADVISORY BOARD

Joshua Kroon is appointed to the Aviation Advisory Board for a one year term beginning 11/3/2016 and ending 11/2/2017 or until his successor has been appointed.

#### **EDUCATION ADVISORY BOARD**

Dale Fulton and Stefan Weiss are appointed to the Education Advisory Board for a one year term beginning October 5, 2016 and ending October 4, 2017 or until their successor has been appointed.

#### **CHARTER REVISION BOARD**

Wilson Atkinson is appointed to the Charter Revision for a one year term beginning October 5, 2016 and ending October 4, 2017 or until his successor has been appointed.

#### **COMMUNITY APPEARANCE BOARD**

Leslie Fordham is appointed to the Community Appearance Board for a one year term beginning November 4, 2016 and ending November 3, 2017 or until her successor has been appointed.

#### **COMMUNITY SERVICES BOARD**

Joseph Van de Bogart is appointed to the Community Services Board for a one year term beginning November 4, 2016 and ending November 3, 2017 or until his successor has been appointed.

#### **ADOPTED**

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

R-2 16-1299

Resolution Approving Payment of Legal Fees incurred by Commissioner Robert L. McKinzie in defending the following lawsuit: Gino Jameson and Claudette Grant v. City of Fort Lauderdale and Robert McKinzie, Case No. 14-021340, in the 17th Judicial Circuit Court in and for Broward County, Florida

Mayor Seiler recognized Craig Fisher, 200 S. Birch Road, who addressed the Commission with his thoughts, comments, questions, and concerns in opposition to this item. Mr. Fisher noted the controversy in items of this nature and the concerns of many City residents who feel as he does that the citizens of the community should not be paying for legal representation of a Commission member regarding residency issues especially when the State Inspector General is involved.

Mayor Seiler recognized Charlie King, 105 N. Victoria Park Road, who addressed the Commission with his thoughts, comments, questions, and concerns in opposition to this item.

Mayor Seiler recognized Assistant City Attorney Candace Duff, who addressed the Commission on this item stating the City Attorney's Office feels this is a proper expenditure. Ms. Duff stated that at the time these expenses were incurred, Commissioner McKinzie was an active City Commissioner. Ms. Duff noted the residency claim was eventually dropped and the other issues related to the City's previous City Clerk, and the interpretation of the City's Charter as to whether an interim City Commissioner could run for office as a City Commissioner.

City Attorney Everett stated that if the City Commission adopts this resolution it is making a specific finding that Commissioner McKinzie's legal services arose out of a connection with his specific duties and does serve a public purpose.

Mayor Seiler reiterated the additional issues relating to this matter involved the previous City Clerk at the time and the interpretation of the City Charter all of which intertwined with Commissioner McKinzie's serving as a City Commissioner and this made them City related issues.

Commissioner Rogers introduced this item which was read by title only.

#### **ADOPTED**

Aye: 4 - Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

Abstain: 1 - Commissioner McKinzie

#### R-3 <u>16-1248</u>

Resolution Approving a Lease Agreement with The Parker Theatre, Inc.

Mayor Seiler opened the public hearing.

Mayor Seiler recognized Mr. Charles King, 105 N. Victoria Park Road, who addressed the Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns, and questions regarding this item specifically focusing on the length of lease term.

City Clerk Modarelli noted that there had been revisions to the memo and the lease agreement for this item.

There being no one else wishing to speak on this item, Vice Mayor Trantalis made a motion to close the public hearing, which was seconded by Roberts. Roll call showed: AYES: Commissioner

McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis, and Mayor Seiler. NAYS: None.

Vice Mayor Trantalis introduced this resolution as amended.

#### ADOPTED AS AMENDED

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

R-4 16-1265

Resolution to Select Suntex Marina Investors LLC's Las Olas Marina Site Proposal

Mayor Seiler noted that this item addresses the selection of one of Suntex Marina Investors LLC's (Suntex) concepts, alternative A, B, or C, for development of the Las Olas Marina. He also noted there had been a community outreach meeting by Suntex. This meeting included representatives of the nearby condominiums, Venetian Condominium, Portofino Condominium, Leisure Beach Condominium, Leisure Beach South Condominium, and the Jackson Tower Condominium. The goal of this community outreach meeting was to receive input from these stakeholders as to their preferred Suntex concept for the development of the Las Olas Marina.

Mayor Seiler recognized Rose Kurlander, One Las Olas Circle and representative of the Venetian Condominium, who addressed the Commission with her thoughts, comments, questions, and concerns in support of this item. Ms. Kurlander thanked Suntex for its community outreach meeting and outlined the marina's enhancements specifically focusing on alternative C3. She noted the meeting included discussions on the number of restaurants alternative C3.

Ms. Kurlander addressed the importance of the committee outreach process and the recommended receiving input from the Marine Advisory Board (MAB), the Beach Redevelopment Board (BRB), the Central Beach Alliance (CAB) and additional neighborhood and community outreach meetings. Her additional comments and concerns focused on traffic flow, delivery truck routes and drop offs, tram schedules, relocation of the City's pumping station, the lease agreement of public property for private business, the desire for more details of the long-term lease, and avoiding the City's previous experiences when only one bid is presented. Ms. Kurlander stated she thought the Suntex concept was good but the City needs to address these details prior to a final vote in February 2017.

Mayor Seiler recognized Jim DeFrancesco, President of the Jackson Towers Las Olas Association, who addressed the Commission with his

thoughts, comments, questions, and concerns in support of this item. Mr. DeFancesco thanked Suntex for its community outreach on this item stating the presentation was very thorough and informative. A copy of Mr. DeFrancesco's complete comments are attached to these minutes.

Mayor Seiler recognized Abby Laughlin, 425 Bayshore Drive, who addressed the Commission with her thoughts, comments, questions, and concerns in support of this item. She acknowledged that alternative C3 was the most popular alternative stating the entire Central Beach Alliance (CAB) has not seen the Suntex presentation and the CAB looks forward to inviting Suntex to its next meeting.

Mayor Seiler recognized Craig Fisher, 200 S. Birch Road, who addressed the Commission with his thoughts, comments, questions, and concerns on this item. Mr. Fisher thanked Vice Mayor Trantalis for his work with recommending and coordinating Suntex's outreach meeting to the neighbors of the Las Olas Marina. Mr. Fisher discussed his support of the alternative C3 concept. He also noted Suntex's professionalism and recommended the City rollout the "Red Carpet" for Suntex. Mr. Fisher also discussed revisiting the closing of the Las Olas Circle when the Boat Show is setting up and further addressing the ingress and egress issues with the proposed parking garage.

Mayor Seiler recognized Art Seitz, 105 N. Ocean Blvd., who addressed the Commission with his thoughts, comments, questions, and concerns in support of Suntex's proposed alternative C3. Mr. Seitz's comments included the marina's restaurant's northwest location and the need for a world-class promenade as it is a key part of the 27 mile long A1A Greenway. Mr. Seitz also recommended using the funding from the Broward Foundation (obtained from the work of Commissioner Rogers) to enhance DC Alexander Park and additional enhancements for *Art in Public Places* for the promenade and would benefit of the public. Mr. Seitz also recommended working with Stacy Ritter, Chief Executive Officer of the Greater Fort Lauderdale Convention and Visitors Bureau, for recommendations and additional ideas to enhance these goals.

Mayor Seiler stated for the record that the Suntex team includes David Filler, Ron Shults, and Dario Meyer.

Vice Mayor Trantalis requested clarification on alternative C. Mayor Seiler recognized David Filler, designated representative of Suntex Marina Investors, who addressed Vice Mayor Trantalis' inquiry stating in response to the RFP, Suntex had identified a variety of locations for a restaurant. He stated all stakeholders believe that alternative C, the

R-5

16-1251

Mega Yacht Marina with a restaurant gives more flexibility from a design perspective. Mr. Filler noted that slide C3 shows proposed site for the restaurant on an existing peninsula in the upland area of the marina site. Further discussions ensued on the additional placement of a more casual restaurant at the southwest corner of the marina. It was noted that EDSA was in support of this option noting there is additional flexibility there to address parking concerns. Comments and discussions ensued on additional amenities for patrons of the marina and the input of those attending the community outreach meetings.

Vice Mayor Trantalis confirmed that the neighborhood community is on board with one and perhaps two restaurants in Suntex's proposal noting that the exact locations are yet to be determined. Mr. Filler confirmed Suntex will continue to have dialogue with the neighborhood community on the marina's design and amenities. He noted this community outreach makes residents feel they are part of the process rather than being excluded. Vice Mayor Trantalis thanked Suntex for its professionalism and outreach to the neighboring community.

Mayor Seiler clarified for the record that the amended adoption of this item includes alternate C3 including a second casual restaurant with a possible small sundries concession/hut. Mayor Seiler also recommended Suntex meet with the Central Beach Alliance (CBA) on the proposed project's alternate C3.

Vice Mayor Trantalis introduced this resolution as amended which the City Clerk read by title only.

Mayor Seiler thanked Suntex, Vice Mayor Trantalis, and all those involved who worked together to involve all neighboring stakeholders. He recommended continued coordination by those involved and to work through Vice Mayor Trantalis' office to address issues, concerns, thoughts and recommendations for Suntex to address.

#### ADOPTED AS AMENDED - Proposal C3

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

Quasi-Judicial Resolution Approving Plat Known as Furniture
Consignment Warehouse Plat - SR 84, Inc. - Case Number PL16004

Anyone wishing to speak must be sworn in. City Commission will announce any site visits, communications, or expert opinions received and make them part of the record.

Each City Commission member disclosed their verbal and written

Printed on 11/8/2016

communications, site visits, and expert opinions received.

There being no one wishing to speak on this item, Vice Mayor Trantalis made a motion to close the public hearing, which was seconded by Commissioner McKinzie. Roll call showed: AYES: Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis, and Mayor Seiler. NAYS: None.

Vice Mayor Trantalis introduced this resolution which was read by title only.

ADOPTED - Approving Plat

Aye: 4 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

Not Present: 1 - Commissioner Roberts

R-6 <u>16-1252</u>

Quasi-Judicial - Resolution Approving Plat Known as Tree House on Brickell - (South Side of Las Olas Boulevard, between SE 17th Avenue and SE 16th Avenue) - Ver-Mac Properties 1613 Brickell, LLC- Case Number PL16002

Anyone wishing to speak must be sworn in. City Commission will announce any site visits, communications, or expert opinions received and make them part of the record.

Each City Commission member disclosed their verbal and written communications, site visits, and expert opinions received.

There being no one wishing to speak on this item, Vice Mayor Trantalis made a motion to close the public hearing, which was seconded by Commissioner McKinzie. Roll call showed: AYES: Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis, and Mayor Seiler. NAYS: None.

Vice Mayor Trantalis introduced this resolution which was read by title only.

ADOPTED - Approving Plat

Aye: 4 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

Not Present: 1 - Commissioner Roberts

R-7 16-1250 Resolution Supporting a Complete Streets Project on NE 4th Avenue

Mayor Seiler stated his concern about this item related to whether or not there is enough flexibility for emergency situations. He noted he had

experienced complaints during preparations for Hurricane Matthew as to what would have occurred had this area of Fourth Avenue which is home to Home Depot been reduced to one lane each way.

Mayor Seiler recognized Diana Alarcon, Director of Transportation and Mobility, who addressed Mayor Seiler's concern about the flexibility of making this portion of Fourth Avenue one lane in each direction. Ms. Alarcon stated these concerns had been addressed at the public hearing held with the City of Wilton Manors last month, and they have gone back and modified the maintaining of the two lanes in the area from 11th Street to Sunrise Boulevard.

Discussions continued with the Commission about having the modified area run from 13th Street to Sunrise Blvd. Ms. Alarcon confirmed for the Commission that these changes were "just paint on the ground." Ms. Alarcon also requested to have the opportunity and flexibility to do an analysis of the implications of removing the bike lane between 11th Street and 13th Street and its impact. Mayor Seiler stated did not have an issue with this request.

Commissioner Roberts asked Ms. Alarcon for confirmation that this item is being funded by Tax Incremental Financing (TIF) money and is being provided by the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO). Ms. Alarcon confirmed both of these points. Discussions continued on removing the bike lanes and its effects on the TIF funding.

Mayor Seiler recognized Christine Fanchi, Planner II (Livability)
Transportation and Mobility, who addressed the Commission about the length of time for a vehicle to travel from the Five Points area in Wilton Manors to Sunrise Blvd. Ms. Fanchi stated the analysis concluded that the lane elimination would increase the delay for motor vehicles during the busiest time of the day by 4 minutes for travel southbound from Sunrise Boulevard to NE 26th Street.

Vice Mayor Trantalis introduced this resolution which was read by title only.

#### **ADOPTED**

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

#### **PUBLIC HEARINGS**

PH-1 16-1249

Resolution Approving a Lease Agreement with the Young Men's Christian Association (YMCA) of South Florida, Inc. for a portion of

Holiday Park along North Federal Highway

Mayor Seiler opened the public hearing.

Mayor Seiler recognized Mr. Charles King, 105 N. Victoria Park Road, who addressed the Commission with his comments, thoughts, concerns, and questions regarding this item. Mr. King asked if all of the YMCA's are similar. He also asked if the YMCA at Holiday Park would be programmed in the same manner as the YMCA on Sistrunk Blvd. Vice Mayor Trantalis stated the concepts are different for the YMCA on Sistrunk and the YMCA at Holiday Park noting that the floor plans are different. Additionally, Vice Mayor Trantalis stated that the YMCA on Sistrunk has commercial space on the first floor for retail businesses.

There being no one else wishing to speak on this item, Vice Mayor Trantalis made a motion to close the public hearing, which was seconded by Commissioner Roberts. Roll call showed: AYES: Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis, and Mayor Seiler. NAYS: None.

Mayor Seiler thanked all of those in the audience from the YMCA for their support of the City's communities.

Vice Mayor Trantalis introduced this resolution which was read by title only.

#### ADOPTED AS AMENDED

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

PH-2 16-1100

Resolution Granting a Waiver of Limitations at 357 Idlewyld Drive for the construction of two (2) triple pile clusters, an existing "T" dock, and a modification to the existing "T" dock

Mayor Seiler opened the public hearing. Vice Mayor Trantalis noted that at his neighborhood meeting last night there was nothing controversial about this item and it is a modification along with the addition of pilings.

There being no one wishing to speak on this item, Vice Mayor Trantalis made a motion to close the public hearing, which was seconded by Commissioner Roberts. Roll call showed: AYES: Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis, and Mayor Seiler. NAYS: None.

Vice Mayor Trantalis introduced this resolution which was read by title only.

#### **ADOPTED**

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

#### ORDINANCE FIRST READING

#### OFR-1 16-1107

Ordinance Amending the Unified Land Development Regulations Revising the List of Permitted and Conditional Uses in the General Aviation Airport (GAA) and Airport Industrial Park (AIP) Zoning Districts and Creating Accessory Use Tables for Both Zoning Districts / Case T16003

Commissioner Rogers concurred with City Manager Feldman on this item and asked him if there was a way to address the airport in a similar manner as the Marine Center in terms of attracting vendors to their site for purposes of repairs and other types of businesses that go on at the airport. He also asked if those businesses are self-sustaining and if there was any validity to looking into this option for attracting businesses to the airport.

City Manager Feldman stated the businesses at this location are self-sustaining. He also noted that aviation related businesses located on airport property, receive subsidized leases at below market rates. City Manager Feldman noted that as a result of the Federal Aviation Administration's (FAA) deed restrictions and its requirement to promote general aviation, there was a lease differential in aviation and non-aviation businesses. Other aspects of this item's rezoning were discussed. City Manager Feldman also noted the City is going through this process at the request of the FAA. City Manager Feldman stated this ordinance's amendment adds medical uses to the two zoning categories.

Commissioner Roberts noted there are numerous moving parts involved in this ordinance and questions relating to all aspects of this ordinance could be addressed at the Second Reading. Mayor Seiler asked for confirmation that this ordinance does not eliminate restaurant usage at the General Aviation Airport (GAA). Eric Engmann, Planner III - Urban Design & Development - Department of Sustainable Development, confirmed that this ordinance does not eliminate restaurant usage at the GAA and restaurants are listed in the category of accessory uses. Additional comments and discussions ensued about different types of allowable ancillary usage which were clarified. It was noted there will be time to work on this ordinance between the First Reading and the Second Reading.

Vice Mayor Trantalis introduced this ordinance on First Reading which was read by title only.

#### PASSED FIRST READING

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

#### ORDINANCE SECOND READING

#### OSR-1 16-1260

An Ordinance Creating New Classes and Adopting Schedule X of the City of Fort Lauderdale Pay Plan and Amending Section 20-83 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Fort Lauderdale by Designating Those Classes as Administrative Assistants to the City Manager

Commissioner Rogers introduced this ordinance on Second Reading which was read by title only.

#### ADOPTED ON SECOND READING

Aye: 4 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts and Mayor Seiler

Not Present: 1 - Vice Mayor Trantalis

#### ORDINANCE FIRST READING Continued

#### OFR-2 16-1253

Ordinance Amending Article X, Vacation Rentals, Chapter 15 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Fort Lauderdale (Code)

Mayor Seiler stated this is the First Reading of this Ordinance, and stated the Second Reading will take place in thirty (30) days, at the November 15, 2016, City Commission Regular Meeting. Mayor Seiler also noted there will be time to work on this ordinance between the First Reading and the Second Reading.

Mayor Seiler recognized Maria Ball, 3609 SW 36th Street, who addressed the Commission in opposition to this item. Ms. Ball stated her reasons for renting her home on *airbnb* were financial. Ms. Ball requested the City to make it easier for people like her to have this supplemental income. Vice Mayor Trantalis asked Ms. Ball who supervises her vacation rental tenants when she is out of town. Ms. Ball stated her housekeeper comes once a week to ensure that vacation rental tenants are not abusing her residence.

Mayor Seiler recognized Steve Coleman, 1729 NE 17th Avenue, who addressed the Commission stating he is in favor of raising the registration fee for vacation rentals due to the need to fund the staffing for

enforcement of the City Code Ordinances already in place and to address vacation rental issues. Mr. Coleman noted he had reported over 25 vacation rental properties in his area as of June, 2016. Mr. Coleman cited several ordinances that were not being enforced in his neighborhood, giving several examples including the inability to identify a vacation rental property from a homeowner property.

Mayor Seiler recognized Jim Miller, 509 SW 18th Court, who addressed the Commission in opposition to this item. Mr. Miller stated he has a "mother-in-law" apartment on his property which he rents out with *airbnb* for economic reasons. He noted he is an on-site owner and stated the problems with vacation rentals occur with out of town owners and "party" houses. Mr. Miller further commented on what he believed to be faults in the City's current ordinances relating to vacation rentals.

Mayor Seiler recognized, Steve Ganon, President of Lauderdale Beach Homeowners Association, who addressed the Commission in support of this ordinance. Mr. Ganon stated everyone in his neighborhood is in consensus with the City's revised ordinance. He also noted the importance of addressing occupancy level issues in this amendment to the original ordinance. Mr. Ganon further commented on other aspects of the current ordinance.

Mayor Seiler recognized Lorraine Messana, 2053 NE 68th Street, who addressed the Commission on this item noting she was an *airbnb* on-site host. Ms. Messana's comments focused on the requirement for vacation rental properties to have a telephone landline and requested this requirement be removed from the ordinance. She also gave her thoughts and concerns over other requirements in the ordinance and the importance of attracting families to the City's local businesses.

Vice Mayor Trantalis asked Ms. Messana what was her gross income from renting on *airbnb*. Ms. Messana stated it was approximately \$40,000. Vice Mayor Trantalis explained the reasons for the need for the City's monitoring of vacation rentals. Ms. Messana addressed the issues raised by Vice Mayor Trantalis and gave her comments on these issues. Mayor Seiler also gave his input and the City Commission's desire to reach a balance on this issue for the benefit of all residents of the City.

Mayor Seiler recognized, Dennis Hanks, speaking on behalf of the Florida Vacation Rental Managers Association, who addressed the Commission in opposition to this ordinance. Mr. Hanks noted the vacation rental industry's input and proposals during past meetings. He focused on the successful models in place in other areas to address the City Commission's concerns. He gave recommendations, comments on

contributing factors, and suggestions to the City Commission. Mr. Hanks also commented on the need for the City Commission to have the necessary data in order to properly address this issue. Questions and discussions continued on the cost of the City's business license fees, fees for vacation rental registration, and complaints from residents in the City's neighborhoods.

Mayor Seiler recognized Jim Ellis, 2608 N. Atlantic Blvd., who addressed the Commission in support of this ordinance. Mr. Ellis confirmed that there were vacation rental complaints in his neighborhood. He thanked the Commission for taking the time to address this issue.

Mayor Seiler recognized Tom Martinelli, 325 NE 1st Avenue and designated representative of *airbnb* who addressed the Commission and gave his input on this ordinance noting *airbnb*'s recent correspondence to the Commission that included recommendations to assist the City with proper vacation rental compliance. Mr. Martinelli clarified *airbnb*'s position regarding its position of not renting to sexual offenders or sexual predators. *A copy of this letter is attached to these minutes*.

Mayor Seiler recognized Marty Bilowich, 2621 Center Avenue, who addressed the Commission in support of this item. Mr. Bilowich commented on the occupancy in the City's ordinance noting the generosity of the current ordinances ratio for the number of people per bedroom and stating it should not be altered. Mayor Seiler asked Mr. Bilowich if owner occupied vacation rentals were an issue in his area, and he stated it was not. Mayor Seiler asked about the issue of children in the ordinance and Vice Mayor Trantalis gave his input on this aspect of the ordinance.

Mayor Seiler recognized Theresa Boothe, 4800 NE 29th Avenue, who addressed the Commission stating for the record that she is in opposition to this ordinance. Ms. Boothe stated her thoughts and comments on the noise complaints in rental properties and the screening process available through *airbnb*. Vice Mayor Trantalis noted for Ms. Boothe it is the City's responsibility to maintain the health, safety, and welfare of the City and is the reason for this ordinance and citing several examples. Discussions and comments continued on this issue.

Mayor Seiler recognized Lars Helpre, 877 E. Palmetto Park Road and designated representative of Superior Florida Rentals, who addressed the Commission in support of this ordinance. Mr. Helpre gave his input from a business perspective noting they do not want complaints at their properties. He stated his desire for reasonable regulation and gave

possible alternatives for modifying the ordinance. Mr. Helpre recommended the City look at how other locations are addressing these issues on vacation rentals in areas that have successful vacation rental programs such as Austin, Texas. Mayor Seiler asked Mr. Helpre to send him a copy of the Austin, Texas ordinance.

Mayor Seiler recognized Jodie Siegal, Esq., 1177 SE 3rd Avenue and designated representative of Florida Places 4 Rent, who addressed the Commission in opposition to this ordinance. Ms. Siegal thanked all involved for their hard work. She addressed the issues in the ordinance regarding occupancy and the 90 day extension for payment for the certificate of compliance. Ms. Siegal requested this be extended to 180 days.

Mayor Seiler recognized Kevin Bratholt, 1234 NW 2nd Avenue, who addressed the Commission in opposition to this ordinance. One of his concerns in the ordinance was about owners being able to respond within an hour. Mr. Bratholt noted the owner's desire for everything to go smoothly while renting their vacation properties.

Mayor Seiler recognized Arthur Pounsford, 3500 NE 25th Street, who addressed the Commission in support of this ordinance. Mr. Pounsford as a resident noted his desire to maintain a good quality of life in his neighborhood and his concerns regarding occupancy ratio's for vacation rentals. He also commented on monitoring the number of occupants, specifically children. At the request of Mayor Seiler, Mr. Pounsford noted there were three vacation rentals near his home.

Mayor Seiler recognized Greg Brewton, designated representative of Florida Vacation Rentals, who addressed the Commission on this item. Mr. Brewton noted he concurred with most of the Commission's and resident comments tonight. He discussed the issue of misconduct with the renters of vacation rentals that are non-registered vacation rentals, which is why the current ordinance is being amended. Mr. Brewton stated that those that are not registered vacation rentals will not adhere to an amended ordinance. Further discussions ensued on the proper use of the properties as vacation rental homes, not party homes, and the occupancy of these rentals as it pertains to children. Mr. Brewton recommended the City use Florida Vacation Rentals' lease as an example of how to regulate conduct in the City's vacation rentals.

Mayor Seiler recognized Joanne Johnson, 22 Andrews Avenue, who addressed the Commission in support of this item. Ms. Johnson reiterated previous comments made and noted her experience as a renter with *airbnb*. She recommended a sliding scale for the cost of

registering homes as a vacation rental and recommend that it be upon the number of bedrooms and corresponding occupancy ratios.

Mayor Seiler recognized Charles King, 105 N. Victoria Park Road, who addressed the Commission on this ordinance stating his comments, thoughts, questions and concerns regarding this item. He recommended keeping the number of people per bedroom in the ordinance as it is currently and giving those on-site homeowners who rent out their properties a benefit.

Mayor Seiler recognized Milic Mico Novovic, designated representative and on behalf of Florida Places for Rent, who addressed the Commission on this ordinance stating his comments, thoughts, questions and concerns. Mr. Novovic noted the businesses who follow the rules cannot compete with those who are not registered and do not follow the City ordinances currently in place.

Mayor Seiler recognized Ismael Corzo, 3250 NE 28th Street, who addressed the Commission in opposition to this ordinance stating he is the owner of numerous vacation rentals both in and outside the City. He stated he is currently in compliance with the City's ordinance and recommended ideas to deal with those not in compliance. Mr. Corzo stated the City may lose in the long run should a large number of the vacation properties in the City be prevented from renting. He suggested that this would force those owners to sell and could flood the City's real estate market with homes noting this could negatively impact the City's tax base.

Mayor Seiler recognized Lucas Azer, 1139 2nd Avenue, who addressed the Commission in opposition to this ordinance. Mr. Azer pointed out several issues regarding his rental property in terms of maintaining the property at a higher standard as compared to long-term renters and their landlords. Mr. Azer also recommended only penalizing non-compliant vacation rentals rather than all vacation rentals. He also pointed out that long-term renters do not have a restriction on the number of people per bedroom.

Mayor Seiler recognized Candace Hillier, 1529 NE 17th Avenue, who addressed the Commission in support of this ordinance. She noted that her neighborhood, Poinsettia Heights, is turning into a neighborhood with a majority of short-term rentals. Ms. Hillier noted she is an on-site *airbnb* homeowner.

Mayor Seiler asked the Commission members for their thoughts. Commissioner Roberts stated that by and large he agreed with the homeowners associations and that the quality of life in these neighborhoods need to be maintained. Commissioner Roberts acknowledged the economic impact of this item and noted the City's ordinance is a good start. He also commented on the number of children needing to be addressed while also being hospitable to families renting in the City. He commented on being open to discussions on owner-occupied properties. Commissioner Roberts commented on the need for strictly enforced leases such as Mr. Novovic's. Commissioner Roberts also commented on the need for enforcing code compliance to ensure it is complied with throughout the City.

City Attorney Everett commented on the City's ability to require a strict lease recommending the City not go down that road. Commissioner Roberts noted he would like to further pursue requiring rental properties have strictly enforced leases to regulate the bad players in the vacation rental market. Commissioner Roberts also commented on issues facing airbnb at the County level.

Commissioner McKinzie also commented Mr. Novovic's strict leases and he would like it incorporated along with the ordinance to be specific in order to move forward and not penalize the owners who are compliant. He also noted the need to focus on specific issues to address the problems and enforce the City's ordinances.

Vice Mayor Trantalis commented on the issue with Code Enforcement not addressing the 95% of non-registered vacation home rentals and reiterating the need exists to enforce what laws are already in place. He stated there is not a problem with the ordinance but with the enforcement of the law, noting that Code Enforcement is not following up with registered vacation rentals that are not compliant with the ordinance. He stated a specific example at 16th Avenue and 17th Street near his home. He stated he was not ready to enact more laws when the current laws are not enforced. City Manager Feldman explained the issues relating to this specific property and discussions followed on the need for enforcement mechanisms.

Commissioner Rogers commented that the best way to enforce this ordinance is still up for debate. Commissioner Rogers further commented on the need to be family friendly, the differences between owner occupied vacation rental properties, and the need for vacation rental registration.

Mayor Seiler addressed the issue of owner occupied vacation rental properties suggesting a reduction in registration fees for owner occupied rental properties.

Commissioner Roberts noted the need to address the problem properties that exist. Debate ensued among the Commission on the City's enforcement mechanism, those already registered, pursuing those who are not registered, and ensuring overall compliance with all aspects of the ordinance.

Commissioner Roberts agreed with Mayor Seiler to lower the registration fees of vacation properties that are owner occupied. He also recommended having an incentive for voluntary vacation rental compliance with reduced registration fees. City Manager Feldman noted the current registration fee is \$750.00 and drops to \$500. The issue of children was also discussed. The purpose of the landline requirement was discussed as it relates to fire alarms and the 911 Emergency Call Center.

Assistant City Attorney D'Wayne Spence noted the need for clarity regarding registration fees for incentives. Mayor Seiler also noted the City cannot mandate a specific lease. City Manager Feldman recommended the City continue using the Broward County website to confirm the number of bedrooms at a vacation rental property. Discussions continued on several aspects of determining the bedroom numbers and occupancy levels at vacation rental properties. City Feldman explained the current process for vacation rental registration.

City Attorney City Everett noted the changes to the ordinance that will be worked out between the First Reading and the Second Reading.

Assistant City Attorney Spence clarified that in the City's initial ordinance, the occupancy ratio was two people per sleeping room. However, the original ordinance did not define a sleeping room. He noted that the industry would like to count living room spaces as sleeping spaces.

Mayor Seiler stated there was not a consensus among the City Commission on this issue and additional discussions on this topic continued. Vice Mayor Trantalis noted the goals on this issue was to limit the number of total people residing in a vacation rental dwelling similar to the Fire Code regulations.

Further comments and discussions ensued on the topic of vacation rental owners authorizing an online hosting service provider to submit an application on behalf of the vacation rental owner. Mayor Seiler also noted that this can be done through a power of attorney.

Assistant City Attorney D'Wayne Spence pointed out the need for eliminating the compliance period, currently in the original ordinance, for hard wiring and swimming pools as the compliance period has ended.

The Commission agreed that this is outdated as the grace period has passed.

The following points noted in tonight's discussions were confirmed as follows:

the amended ordinance will include a reduction of 50% for owner occupied residences;

the requirement remains for a landline at vacation rental properties;

there will be no change in the determination of occupancy;

there will be no change to the response time for an owner or manager of the vacation rental when a complaint is received;

there will be nothing in the amendment at this time regarding the age of children at vacation rental properties;

City Staff will confirm and verify the number of bedrooms during the vacation rental's site inspection process;

the amendment will include allowing a vacation rental owner to authorize an online hosting service provider to submit an application on behalf of the vacation rental owner to the City (It was confirmed that this can currently be done through a power of attorney); and

elimination of the compliance period for hard wiring and swimming pools in the original ordinance as it is now outdated.

Commissioner Roberts requested a listing of known problem vacation rental properties from City Manager Feldman. Commissioner Roberts also noted he may have additional comments after review of the *airbnb* correspondence. He also noted this amendment may have additional updates between the First Reading and the Second Reading.

Mayor Seiler stated that the Second Reading will occur at the November 15, 2016, City Commission Regular Meeting.

Commissioner Rogers introduced this ordinance as amended for the First Reading which was read by title only.

PASSED FIRST READING AS AMENDED

Aye: 4 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts and Mayor Seiler

Nay: 1 - Vice Mayor Trantalis

# 16-1312 Walk-On Motion - City Commission Request for Review - Tattoo Blues Sign - Case Number R16052

Vice Mayor Trantalis stated this item relates to a request for a variance for a larger size sign on this tattoo business than is currently allowed by City Code. He stated he is opposed to the requested variance. Vice Mayor Trantalis requested that this item be called up at the City Commission Meeting of November 15, 2016.

Vice Mayor Trantalis moved to have this item called up at the meeting of November 15, 2016, and was seconded by Commissioner Rogers.

APPROVED Motion to set hearing to review Case Number R16052 on November 15, 2016 6 p.m.

Aye: 5 - Commissioner McKinzie, Commissioner Rogers, Commissioner Roberts, Vice Mayor Trantalis and Mayor Seiler

#### **CLOSED DOOR REQUEST**

City Attorney Cynthia Everett requested that pursuant to Florida Statute, Section 286.011(8)(a), she will be seeking advice during the City Commission Meeting on November 1, 2016, at a time to be determined, on the following matters of:

#### <u>Jim Haines v. City of Fort Lauderdale</u> Case No. CACE 15-017522 (21)

# Albion Staffing Solutions, Inc. v. City of Fort Lauderdale Case No. CACE 15-018760 (09)

### Brian Zelinski v. City of Fort Lauderdale

Case No. CACE 14-021321 (12)

City Attorney Everett noted that this Executive Closed Door Session would occur during the absence of Vice Mayor Trantalis, on November 1, 2016.

Vice Mayor Trantalis stated he did not have an issue with the Executive Closed Door Session on the three above noted matters happening during his absence scheduled for November 1, 2016.

Additionally, upon return of Vice Mayor Trantalis, City Attorney Cynthia

Everett also requested that pursuant to Florida Statute, Section 286.011(8)(a), she will be seeking advice during the City Commission Meeting on November 15, 2016, at a time to be determined, on the following matters of:

<u>Arnold Abbott and Love Thy Neighbor Fund, Inc. vs. City of Fort Lauderdale</u>

Case No. CACE 99-03583

Arnold Abbott and Love Thy Neighbor Fund, Inc., and Pastor Dwayne
Black vs. City of Fort Lauderdale
Case No. CACE 14-024037

#### **ADJOURN**

There being no further business before the City Commission at the meeting of October 18, 2016, Mayor Seiler adjourned the meeting at 11:00 p.m.

John P. Nack" Seiler

Mayor

ATTEST:

Jeffrey A. Modarelli

City Clerk

# FORM 8B MEMORANDUM OF VOTING CONFLICT FOR COUNTY, MUNICIPAL, AND OTHER LOCAL PUBLIC OFFICERS

LAST NAME—FIRST NAME—MIDDLE NAME		NAME OF BOAR	NAME OF BOARD, COUNCIL, COMMISSION, AUTHORITY, OR COMMITTEE					
McKinzie Robert L.		Fort Lauder	dale City Commiss	sion				
MAILING ADDRESS 505 NW 19th Avenue		THE BOARD, CO WHICH I SERVE		THORITY OR COMMITTEE ON				
CITY	COUNTY	■ CITY	□ COUNTY	OTHER LOCAL AGENCY				
Fort Lauderdale	Broward	NAME OF POLIT	TICAL SUBDIVISION:					
DATE ON WHICH VOTE OCCURRED October 18, 2016		MY POSITION IS	S:	□ APPOINTIVE	<del></del>			

V	٨	/ŀ	ı	O	٨	Λ	U	S	Т	FI		Ε	F	O	R	'n	A	8	В
٠	4	,,		•	11	"	v	v			-	_		${f \cdot}$		ν.	76	v	_

<u>~</u>	
5	<i>(</i>
*******	2
ä	
-	
2	

This form is for use by any person serving at the county, city, or other local level of government on an appointed or elected board, council, commission, authority, or committee. It applies to members of advisory and non-advisory bodies who are presented with a voting conflict of interest under Section 112.3143, Florida Statutes.

Your responsibilities under the law when faced with voting on a measure in which you have a conflict of interest will vary greatly depending on whether you hold an elective or appointive position. For this reason, please pay close attention to the instructions on this form before completing and filing the form.

#### INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 112.3143, FLORIDA STATUTES

A person holding elective or appointive county, municipal, or other local public office MUST ABSTAIN from voting on a measure which would inure to his or her special private gain or loss. Each elected or appointed local officer also MUST ABSTAIN from knowingly voting on a measure which would inure to the special gain or loss of a principal (other than a government agency) by whom he or she is retained (including the parent, subsidiary, or sibling organization of a principal by which he or she is retained); to the special private gain or loss of a relative; or to the special private gain or loss of a business associate. Commissioners of community redevelopment agencies (CRAs) under Sec. 163.356 or 163.357, F.S., and officers of independent special tax districts elected on a one-acre, one-vote basis are not prohibited from voting in that capacity.

For purposes of this law, a "relative" includes only the officer's father, mother, son, daughter, husband, wife, brother, sister, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law, and daughter-in-law. A "business associate" means any person or entity engaged in or carrying on a business enterprise with the officer as a partner, joint venturer, coowner of property, or corporate shareholder (where the shares of the corporation are not listed on any national or regional stock exchange).

#### **ELECTED OFFICERS:**

In addition to abstaining from voting in the situations described above, you must disclose the conflict:

PRIOR TO THE VOTE BEING TAKEN by publicly stating to the assembly the nature of your interest in the measure on which you are abstaining from voting; and

WITHIN 15 DAYS AFTER THE VOTE OCCURS by completing and filing this form with the person responsible for recording the minutes of the meeting, who should incorporate the form in the minutes.

#### **APPOINTED OFFICERS:**

Although you must abstain from voting in the situations described above, you are not prohibited by Section 112.3143 from otherwise participating in these matters. However, you must disclose the nature of the conflict before making any attempt to influence the decision, whether orally or in writing and whether made by you or at your direction.

IF YOU INTEND TO MAKE ANY ATTEMPT TO INFLUENCE THE DECISION PRIOR TO THE MEETING AT WHICH THE VOTE WILL BE TAKEN:

You must complete and file this form (before making any attempt to influence the decision) with the person responsible for recording the
minutes of the meeting, who will incorporate the form in the minutes. (Continued on page 2)

#### **APPOINTED OFFICERS (continued)**

, t

- A copy of the form must be provided immediately to the other members of the agency.
- The form must be read publicly at the next meeting after the form is filed.

IF YOU MAKE NO ATTEMPT TO INFLUENCE THE DECISION EXCEPT BY DISCUSSION AT THE MEETING:

- · You must disclose orally the nature of your conflict in the measure before participating.
- You must complete the form and file it within 15 days after the vote occurs with the person responsible for recording the minutes of the
  meeting, who must incorporate the form in the minutes. A copy of the form must be provided immediately to the other members of the
  agency, and the form must be read publicly at the next meeting after the form is filed.

	DISCI	OSURE OF LOCAL OFFICE	ER'S INTEREST	
I,	Robert L. McKinzie	, hereby disclose that on	October 18	, 20 <u>16</u> :
(a) /	A measure came or will come before my	agency which (check one or more)		
X	inured to my special private gain or i	oss;		
7	•	ny business associate,		:
	inured to the special gain or loss of	my relative,		;
	whom I am retained; or			
	inured to the special gain or loss of			, which
	is the parent subsidiary, or sibling or	ganization or subsidiary of a principal v	vhich has retained me.	
(b) <sup>-</sup>	The measure before my agency and the	e nature of my conflicting interest in the	measure is as follows:	
	measure was to my benefit.			
lf di	sclosure of specific information would v	violate confidentiality or privilege pursu	ant to law or rules governing	attorneys a public officer
who	o is also an attorney, may comply with the provide the public with notice of the co	ne disclosure requirements of this secti	ion by disclosing the nature of	the interest in such a way
Da	te Filed	Sign	hature (1)	

NOTICE: UNDER PROVISIONS OF FLORIDA STATUTES §112.317, A FAILURE TO MAKE ANY REQUIRED DISCLOSURE CONSTITUTES GROUNDS FOR AND MAY BE PUNISHED BY ONE OR MORE OF THE FOLLOWING: IMPEACHMENT, REMOVAL OR SUSPENSION FROM OFFICE OR EMPLOYMENT, DEMOTION, REDUCTION IN SALARY, REPRIMAND, OR A CIVIL PENALTY NOT TO EXCEED \$10,000.

Tuesday, October 18, 2016
Town Hall meeting regarding the Las Olas Marina
Presentation by: Suntex and Edgewater Partners
Presentation to the Fort Lauderdale city commissioners

10/18/2016

R-4

Requiler Meeting

Provided by

Tim Defien cesco

Good evening Mr. Mayor; City Commissioners.

My name is Jim DeFrancesco, I am Jackson Towers Board President, and I want to thank all of you... Particularly Commissioner Trantalis for encouraging, SunTex to reach out to our community at Jackson Tower as well as our neighbor associations, the Portofino, leisure Beach, leisure Beach South, and the Venetian.

David Filler and his associates at Suntex made a very thorough presentation of the Marina this morning at a town hall meeting that we at Jackson Tower hosted for the other four associations that I just mentioned.

As a result, of what I thought was a very successful presentation and meeting, I would like to share with you some of thoughtful feedback resulting from our meeting this morning with our neighboring associations.

However, before I begin, I need to mention that I am only speaking officially for the interests of the residents of Jackson Towers, which as you know is a 125 unit high-rise condominium directly adjacent to the proposed Marina.

That said, as a general matter, I believe all of the associations and their directors who attended embraced the marina project with the addition of an upscale restaurant. Suntex did a very respectful job presenting, listening and offering suggestions to the issues and questions of the 30+ attendees.

So, I'd like to share some of those comments with you for the record. While there may still be unknown answers to the questions that were raised, we feel it is a very important first step to identify community concerns so the city can resolve them thoughtfully in the course of its overall planning.

Now, the presentation was largely about the Marina expansion and restaurant under alternate plan C titled "Mega Yacht Plan + Restaurant".

As you know this plan incorporates dredging out the parking lot to accommodate a large basin for additional dockage, an upscale restaurant and a separate location along the promenade, for an upscale lounge/bar.

While there were questions as to the number of slips that would be added to the marina; an answer which we still owe at least one of the attendees, the attendees generally agreed to accept plan C as a relates to the expansion of the marina basin.

The focus then turned to the restaurant. After much discussion, the number one choice for the location of the restaurant was plan C3 which locates the restaurant in the upper most North West corner of the marina. Although not voted upon, this location was generally the first choice of everyone in the room for the following reasons.

- a. It provides the best open water view for the restaurant patrons
- b. it provides the preservation of green space between the restaurant and Jackson Tower Las Olas
- c. it provides additional flexibility for loading and offloading patrons who valet their vehicles

The second most favored location for restaurant was along the promenade on the west side of the garage. The reasons for this selection were;

- a. it provides an open view of the water for restaurant patrons
- b. is on the opposite of the garage and not intrusive to residents
- c. it provides greater accessibility to parking in the garage
- d. the one negative was whether or not there was a large enough footprint alone the promenade

In either case, We understand that this will be an upscale restaurant which is appealing to our Association members and residents. We further understand that the restaurant will be resident friendly. Which should take into account issues like noise restriction, pet friendliness for its outdoor café, and so on.

No particular recommendation was made for type of cuisine, although Suntex promised it would be fine dining.

So what are the concerns regarding the restaurant and the marina?

- 1. Loading and offloading for delivery vehicles provisioning the restaurant, trash removal, etc.
  - a. loading zones, street parking along S. Birch Rd.
- 2. Adequate parking for trucks and vendors servicing the residential buildings and boats in the Marina.
- 3. Relocation of pump station D31
- 4. The City of Lauderdale providing 7/24 security on site (with offices) to support the Marina and the garage areas.
- 5. Nonintrusive lighting and other open space amenities compatible with residential environment.
- 6. Provisions for burying underground utility lines along S. Birch Rd.
- 7. Assuring adequate pedestrian walkways,
- 8. Traffic pattern issues, Sun Trolleys loading / offloading passengers.

So in closing, our Association would like to stay closely abreast of the development of this project since it directly affects Jackson Towers, its property value, and preservation of the quality of life of the residents who have invested in at Jackson Tower.

Speaking for Jackson Tower, and I believe the feeling is shared with the other four associations, we share the city and Suntex's vision for improving our community. We implore the city commissioners to give thoughtful consideration to our community concerns and openly share how the city plans to address these issues within the project plan.

We wish to stay informed and have a relationship with Suntex and the City of Fort Lauderdale during the entire Marina project

Again, Thank you providing me an opportunity to address the Council.







OFR-2 10/18/2016 Regular Meeting Submitted by Tom Martinelli airlink

October 17, 2016

Lee Feldman City Manager City of Ft. Lauderdale 100 North Andrews Avenue Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301

Dear Manager Feldman,

Airbnb would like to take this opportunity to thank the City for allowing us to comment on the proposed ordinance amending Article X, Vacation Rentals, Chapter 15 of the Code of Ordinances.

Airbnb, a proud Trustee of the Ft. Lauderdale Chamber of Commerce, is committed to providing rental opportunities for both our hosts and guests in the City of Ft. Lauderdale. The proposed ordinance makes some very positive recommendations and we understand the City's desire to create a workable set of rules to govern the growing demand for alternative accommodations when traveling.

We would like to offer revisions to your proposed ordinance that we believe will improve your compliance rate while preserving the rich character of this community. In the following pages of this letter, we will identify those changes and make simple explanations.

We look forward to working with you, your staff and the Commission to discuss our recommendations in further detail.

#### Section 15-271 definitions;

We would include the following definition:

Online Hosting Service Provider means an internet-enabled application, mobile application, or any other digital platform used by a short term residential rental intermediary to connect guests with the provider of a Vacation Rental or Shared Housing Unit.

In paragraph 5, we would delete "living rooms"

Many homes have family rooms or living rooms with pull out sofas or other sleeping accommodations. Some families put a sleeping bag on the ground for their children. Some homes have "Florida rooms" where people sleep during different times of the year.

#### Sec. 15-272 Registration Required

In subsection (a), line 3 please insert:

, or sleeping rooms therein

In subsection (b)(4) we recommend deleting that section as it may be outdated and no longer applicable.

In subsection (d), line 3, please insert:

, or sleeping rooms therein

#### Sec. 15-273. Application for registration

In subsection (a), we recommend the section be written:

(a) A separate application for registration of a Vacation Rental shall be made to the City Manager or his or her designee for each <u>unit in a condominium or cooperative or any individually or collectively owned single-family, two-family, three-family, or four-family house or dwelling unit that is dwelling unit, as the term is defined in Section 47-35.1 of the City of Fort Lauderdale, Florida, Unified Land Development Regulations, proposed for use as a Vacation Rental and shall set forth at a minimum:</u>

In subsection (3) we would delete all language after the word "party" in line 2.

for said property, which shall be a twenty-four (24) hour, seven (7) days a week contact number:

The 24/7 requirement is unnecessary and may inadvertently create a violation if someone is asleep at 3:00 am and does not answer the phone. If it is an emergency situation, all guests are instructed to call local authorities.

We would delete subsections (6), (7), (8) & (9). These are duplicative and are addressed elsewhere.

We would then delete subsections; (c), (1), (2), (3), (4) and the last paragraph. We find these requirements to be duplicative given that the City code requires owners of every property to apply to the city for permits to make substantive changes to their property. The City would already have this information.

We would replace subsection (c) to read:

(c) An owner or tenant may authorize an Online Hosting Service Provider to submit an application for the registration of a Vacation Rental on his or her behalf.

This allows Airbnb to offer a service to our hosts, especially if there are language or physical barriers that might exist for the host.

#### Sec. 15-275. Responsible party required.

We would delete the following language from the first paragraph:

who resides within twenty-five (25) miles of the Vacation Rental property, the distance measured using airline measurement from the closest property lines of the Vacation Rental and the Responsible party's residence,

We find this to be onerous and unnecessary language that creates a double standard.

In subsections (4), (5) & (6) we would revise these section to read:

- (4) Be available with authority to address and coordinate solutions to problems with the rental property within a reasonable period of time.
- (5) Be situated close enough to the property as to be able to respond promptly upon in person within one (1) hour of being notified by a Vacation Rental occupant, law enforcement officer, emergency personnel, or the City of issues related to the Vacation Rental. Responsible party shall respond when requested;
- (6) Keep available a register of all guests, which shall be open available to inspection by authorized personnel of the City of Fort Lauderdale pursuant to valid legal process at all times; and

We believe the City did not intend to create an onerous and unreasonable set of requirements. These changes correct that.

#### Sec. 15-277. Minimum Requirements for Issuance of a Certificate of Compliance.

We would delete subsections (3), (4), (5), (7), (8), & (9). These sections merely add paperwork. The City has codes and ordinances in effect and expects all of its residents to abide by them without adding meaningless and duplicative paperwork and affidavits.

#### Sec. 15-278. Vacation Rental Standards.

We would delete subsection (f). Many properties today are not wired for landlines.

We would delete subsection (g) as it seems to be outdated.

We would delete subsection 2. This section is arbitrary and does not reflect the way Americans live or travel today. Think about a child's bedroom with two sets of bunk beds, a den, a sleeping porch or the couch. Many of us have been relegated there whether we are on vacation or not.

We would delete the following language in subsection 7:

A statement stating "it is unlawful for a sexual offender or sexual predator to occupy this residence" if so determined pursuant to subsection 15-278(8) of this eode and the Certificate of Compliance number shall be included in all advertising. 

□

While we agree with the intent, Airbnb does not permit sexual offenders to be a guest or a host.

We would add Section 11 & 12

11. That it shall be unlawful to allow or make any sound that exceeds the limits set forth in Chapter 17, Noise Control

12. That no solid waste container shall be located at the curb for pickup before 6:00 PM of the day prior to pick up, and solid waste container shall be removed before midnight of the day of pickup

We would change the title of 15-279:

Sec. 15-279. Initial and r Routine compliance inspections of vacation rentals.

We would delete subsection (a). We believe this creates an entirely new and expensive regulatory system that is unnecessary. Instead we propose a simpler series of inspections.

We would modify the first sentence in subsection (b) to read:

Once <u>a Certificate of Compliance is</u> issued, a vacation rental unit must be properly maintained in accordance with the vacation rental standards herein and <u>may</u> will-be re-inspected once every three years <del>annually</del>.

We would add new subsection (d):

If the inspector(s) is denied admittance by the vacation rental responsible party or if the inspector fails in at least three (3) attempts to complete an initial or subsequent inspection of the rental unit, the inspector(s) shall provide notice of failure of inspection to the owner to the address shown on the existing vacation rental certificate of compliance or the application for vacation rental.

We would delete subsection (e).

And we would re-write subsection (f):

(2)For a subsequent inspection, the  $\triangle$  notice of failure of inspection is considered a violation and is subject to enforcement remedies as provided herein.

#### Sec. 15-281. Expiration of registration and certificates of compliance.

We would modify the term of registration to be valid for three years as opposed to one. This concludes our comments on the proposed ordinance.

We look forward to discussing any part of the proposal with you or staff as you deem appropriate. We believe that our changes will improve compliance, eliminate unnecessary burdens on hosts and guests, and simplify the regulatory system.

Sincerely,

Tom Martinelli

Public Policy, Airbnb

Cc: The Honorable Jack Seiler

The Honorable Dean Trantalis

The Honorable Robert McKinzie

The Honorable Romney Rogers

The Honorable Bruce Roberts

	January												
S	M	T	W	T	F	S							
1	2	CM	4	5	6	7							
8	9	10	11	12	13	14							
15	16	CM	18	19	20	21							
22	23	24	25	26	27	28							
29	30	31											

	February												
S	M	Т	W	T	F	S							
			1	2	3	4							
5	6	7	8	9	10	11							
12	13	14	15	16	17	18							
19	20	21	22	23	24	25							
26	27	28											

		M	larc	eh		
S	M	T	W	T	F	S
			1	2	3	4
5	6	7	8	9	10	11
12	13	14	15	16	17	18
19	20	21	22	23	24	25
26	27	28	29	30	31	

	April											
S	M	T	W	T	F	S						
	1											
2	3	4	5	6	7	8						
9	10	11	12	13	14	15						
16	17	CM	19	20	21	22						
23	24	25	26	27	28	29						
30												

	May											
S	M	T	W	T	F	S						
	1	2	3	4	5	6						
7	8	9	10	11	12	13						
14	15	16	17	18	19	20						
21	22	23	24	25	26	27						
28	29	30	31									

	June											
S	M	Т	W	T	F	S						
				1	2	3						
4	5	6	7	8	9	10						
11	12	13	14	15	16	17						
18	19	20	21	22	23	24						
25	26	27	28	29	30							

	July												
S	M	Т	W	T	F	S							
						1							
2	3	CM	5	6	7	8							
9	10	11	12	13	14	15							
16	17	18	19	20	21	22							
23	24	25	26	27	28	29							
30	31												

	August											
S	M	T	W	T	F	S						
		1	2	3	4	5						
6	7	8	9	10	11	12						
13	14	15	16	17	18	19						
20	21	22	23	24	25	26						
27	28	29	30	31								

September						
S	M	T	W	T	F	S
					1	2
3	4	CM	6	7	8	9
10	11	12	13	14	15	16
17	18	19	20	21	22	23
24	25	26	27	28	29	30

October						
S	M	T	W	T	F	S
1	2	3	4	5	6	7
8	9	10	11	12	13	14
15	16	17	18	19	20	21
22	23	24	25	26	27	28
29	30	31				

November						
S	M	Т	W	Т	F	S
			1	2	3	4
5	6	7	8	9	10	11
12	13	14	15	16	17	18
19	20	21	22	23	24	25
26	27	28	29	30		

The Part of the Pa			Dec	em	ber		
open and the second	S	M	Т	W	Т	F	S
						1	2
	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
	10	11	12	13	14	15	16
	17	18	19	20	21	22	23
	24	25	26	27	28	29	30
	31						

# 2017 Holiday Calendar

January
o1: New Year's Day
o2: City Holiday
03: Commission M
. C. W T I

03: Commission Meeting Day
16: Martin Luther King, Jr. Day

17: Commission Meeting Day

#### April

17-18: Passover (last two days)

18: Commission Meeting Day\*

#### July

04: Independence Day

04: Commission Meeting Day\*

#### September

04: Labor Day

**05:** Commission Meeting Day

# **LEGEND**

Red - Legal Holidays

Blue - CM-Commission Meeting Days

Purple - The day is both a Holiday and the Commission Meeting Day